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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Easy Trip Planners Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Easy Trip Planners Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at
March 31, 2021, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income,
the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 3 [, 2021, their consolidated profit including
other comprehensive income, their consolidaied cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that arc relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 42 in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which describes the possible

effect of uncertainties relating to COVID-19 pandemic on the Group’s financial performance as
assessed by the management. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

5.R. Batlibei & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLF [dentity No, AAB-4295
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block 'B', 3rd Flgor, Kolkata-700 D16
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are thase matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters, For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of audit
procedures performed by us and by other auditors of components not audited by us, as reported by them
in their audit reports furnished to us by the management, including those procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Key audit matter ‘ How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition from air passage (Refer Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements)
The Group derives its revenue mainly from | Our audit procedures included, amongst others the
agency commission on sale of airline tickets. | following:

e We obtained an understanding of the systems,

Revenue from the sale of airline tickets is
recognized on a net commission basis and
revenue from incentives and fees s
recognized on earned hasis net of discounts
given to customers. Incentives from airlines
are recognized as revenue when the
performance obligations under the incentive
schemes are achieved/ expected to be
achieved during the vear.

We identified revenue recognition from air
ticketing relating to incentives as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the Group’s
key performance indicators. Also, there is an
inherent risk that revenue could be recorded at
incorrect  amount  since  estimation  of
incentives is dependent upon various inputs
such as incidence of travel by customers,
achievement of sale/ flown targets and
affumation of relevant data, as provided by
the airlines, .

Other Information

processes and controls implemented by the
Group for recording revenue from air passage,
evaluated the design and tested the operating |
effectiveness of key controls, |
On a sample basis, we have traced the travel
details for which income is recognised to the
statements provided by the airlines to evaluate
the incidence of travel by the customers.

On a sample basis, tested the amount of
incentives accrued at the year end on the basis
of percentages (as prescribed by various
airlines) applied on travel/ flown data received
from airlines. The amount of accrued incentives
is also adjusted with the data affirmed by
airlines, to the extent received. |
Assesed adequacy of disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
ol accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements ¢an arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as frand may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are aiso
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
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carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended March 31,2021 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rarc
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 3 subsidiaries,
whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 174.79 Mn as at March 31, 2021, and total
revenues of Rs 0.18 Mn and net cash outflows of Rs 102.11 Mn for the year ended on that date.
These financial statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which
financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by
the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based
solely on the reports of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries as
noted in the “other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

{a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;
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(b)

©

(d}

(e)

ity

(g)

()

It our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies, none of the directors of the Group’s companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
comparties incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 17 to this report;

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the
subsidiaries, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid /
provided by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries incorporated in India to their directors in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 1]
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

1. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group in its consolidated financial statements —
Refer Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2021;
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There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries incorporated in India during
the year ended March 31, 2021.

iii.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

(= L ///'

|

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 094941
UDIN: 21094941 AAAACA2655
Place of Signature: New Delhi

Date: June 15, 2021
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF EASY TRIP PLANNERS LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Easy Trip Planners Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company™) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company which is
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Hoiding Company which is incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safegvarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compieteness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards
on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both, issued by ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
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the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opmion, the Holding Company, which is incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

1CAJ Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
A

M

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number; 94941

UDIN: 21094941 AAAACA2655

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
{Amount in INR million, unless otherwige staled)

. As at As at
Partculars Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets

{a) Property, plant and equipment 3 T75.57 77.58
{b) Intangible assets 4 145 1.26
(c) Goodwill 4 1596 15.95
(d) Investmens property 5 23,13 23.21
(&) Intangibie assets under develepment 4 333 3.33
(f) Financial assets
{i) Loans [ 0,50 65.29
(1) Other financial assets [ 133,16 150.23
() Deferred tax asset {net) 17 3287 30.59
(h) Other current assets 7 1.12
Total non-turrent assety 192,09 367.45
IL Current assets
(a) Financizal assets

(i) Lozns 3 21263 13239

(ii) Invesiments & L0.15 999

(iii) Trade reczivables 8 289.03 58192

(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 9 426.42 134.14

(v) Other bank balances 4 1.858.32 1,177.95

{vi} Other financial assets 6 7275 204.27

{b) Other current assets 7 815.45 26073
Total current assets 3,684.75 2,531,39
Total Assets ([+II) 3,976,234 2,898.84
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. EQUITY

{a) Equity share capital 10 217.29 217.29

(b) Other equity 11

(i) Retained earnings 1,406.99 793,21

{ii) Capilal Reserves 297 297

(iii} Other Reserves {0.61) {0.96)

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Group o 1626.64 1,012.51
Non-controlling imeresis - o
Total equity 1,626.64 1,612.51
LIABILITIES
1¥. Non-current liabilities

(2) Contrael {iability i4 21244 386.82

{b) Long term provisions 15 18.27 12.53
Total non-current liabilities 230.71 o 404.35
V. Current liabilities

(a} Financial iiabilities

(i) Borrowings 12 17341 67.60

(if) Trade payables 13

Tetal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 045

Tetal outstanding dues of eraditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 25585 266,36

(iii ) Orther financial liabilities 13 1,074.32 717.31

(b} Centract liability 14 374,58 229,85

() Provisicns 15 4,99 294

(d) Other current liabilities 16 109.80 83.12

{e) Liabilities far current tax (net) i7 126.09 114,77
Total curvent tabilities 2,119.49 1,481.98
Total Liabilities 2,350.20 188633
Total Equity and Liabilities (IN-+1v+V) = 3,976.34 - 2,898.84

Sumaary of sigrificant accounting policies 2

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the financial sttements
As per our report of even date

For .R, Balliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI firm regisivation number: 101049W/E306004

P

€7 Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Na.: 94941

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Easy Trip Planners Limiled

CIN - L63090DL200SP }. | 79041 {\

| ﬁj

z —

ishant Bt cm&'mie
Director Birector
DIN: 02172265 ' DIN: 03136369
Plage: Now Dedhi Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021 - Date: June |5, 2021

Ashish Fumar Bansal ——

Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021

- .

Pr

S harma

», Company Secretary

Alembership No: 34417
Mace: New Delhi
Dite: June 15, 2021

|



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lass for the year ended March 31,2021
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
ot March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
1 Revenue from operations 18 1,067.10 1,413.60
It Other income 19 440.45 396.51
m Total income (1 + 1II) 1,507.55 1,810.11
v Expenses
Service cost - 37.54
Employee benefits expense 20 211.94 J01.96
Finance costs 21 3534 33.02
Depreciation and amortization expense 22 6.62 707
Other expenses 23 419,80 571710
Tata) expenses 673.70 1,351.2¢
vV Profit hefore tax (IL-1V) 833.85 458.82
V1 Tax expense: 17
Current tax 226,27 132.52
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years Lo0 -
Deferred tax credit (3.52) (3.53)
Total tax expense 223.75 128.99
V1l Profit for the year (V-VI) 610.10 329,83
YI[  Other Comprehensive Income
[tems that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss in 24
subsequent years
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 4.92 1.80
{;;::me tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and (1.24) ©.45)
Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss in
subsequent years
Re-measurement gains/ (lusses) on exchange differences on translation
. . 0.35 (1.28)
of foreign operations
[ncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit and loss - 0.32
4.03 0.39
1X Total comprehensive income of the year, net of tax (VIH-VIIT) 614.13 330.22
Earnings per share: (INR) [face value of INR 2 per share |
Basic and Dilnted 25 5.62 3.04
5.62 3.04
Summary of sivnificant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants
Easy Trip Planners Limited

ICA]1 firm registration number: 101049W/E300004 CIN - L83090DL200SPTC179041
per Yogesh Midha Nishant Pu-lf// /é Mﬁ/ t Pittie
Partner Director rector
Membership No.: 94941 DIN: 02172265 DIN: 03136369
- Place; New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Place: New Delhi \ _"\\ Date: June 15, 2021 - } Date: Jujie 15, 2021
Date: June 15, 2021 N - /P
. IRy N A
Ashish Kumar Bansai Preeti Sharma
Chief Financial Officer = o Company Secretary
St g\ Membership No: 34417
Place: New Delhi [/ N0\ Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021 ( |7, | Date: June 15,2021
| |
\ S — e s



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

for the year ended

for the year ended March 31,

A Cash flow from vperating activities
I Profit before tax
Profit before tax

2 Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization
Advance written off
Finance cost
Interest income from:
- On deposits with bank
- On loans and others
hnpairment allowance of trade receivables
Pravision for doubtful advances
Bad debts
Dividend income
Exchange differences
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Liability no longer required written back and Claims written back
Income from financial guarantee
Profit on sale of investment property

3 Operating profit before working capital changes (1+2)

4 Working Capital adjustments:
Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease in financial assets
(Increase) in other current assets
(Decrease)} in trade payables
Increase in other financiaf liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities
(Decrease) in contract liabilities
[ncrease in provisions
Net changes in working capital

§  Net cash flows from operating activities (3-+4)

6 Direct tnxes paid (net of refunds)

7 Net cash flows from operating activities (5-6) (A)
B Cash flow from investing activities;

Purchase of investments

Payment for Purchase of property, plant and equipment, Intangible assets and Intangibles
under development

Proceeds from sale of Investment property

Purchase of Investment property

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)
Dividend received

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities:

€ Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds for short-term bomrowings
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Finance costs paid
Net cash flows used in financing activities:

D Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C)

{This space has been intentionally left blank)

March 31, 2021 2020
833.85 458.82
833.85 458.82
6.62 7.07
3.56 9.02
3193 2970
(95.87) {53.38)
{13.19) (35.57)
9265 3247
2.75 231.01
13.26 1571
(0.23) {0.13)
(0.05) -
(323.48) (243.78)
- (17.69)
{358.05) (233.57)
475.80 225.25
269.98 (211.70}
100.37 25311
(538.03) {147.48)
(4.53) (32.08)
674.62 473.91
26.69 (122.72)
(32.35) (112.71)
7.70 6.47
504,43 106.80
980.25 332.06
(241.79) (57.44)
738.46 274,61
- (9.9%)
(5.84) {30.82)
- 7749
- (1.63)
{668.29) (658.23)
0.23 0.13
124.64 77.87
1549.26) (545.18)
5.13 67.60
- (.77
- (0.54)
(2.73) (1.33)
2.40 63.96
191.60 (206.60)
74 ,



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
{Amount in INR million, unless stherwise stated)

Particulars

for the year ended

for the year ended March 31,

March 31, 2021 2020
E  Cash & cash equivalents as at the begmning of the year 134.14 340.75
Cash & cash equivalents as at the end of the year (DHE}) 31574 134.14
Cash and cash equivalents comprises:
Cash on hand 212 232
Funds io transit 83.83 10.67
Balances with banks:

- Current account™® 34047 121.15
Less: Bank overdrafis (100.68) -
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer nate 9) 325.74 134.14

*Balance in current account includes INR 0.04 (Marcl 31, 2020: Nil) which is in nature of restricted cash.
The reconciliation between the opening and the closing balances in the bafance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities are as follows:
. for the year ended for the year ended

P: K

articulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Onpening balance 67.60 -
Cash Inflows - 65.16
Forzign exchange management 3.91 215
Others 041 0.29
Closing balance - 72.73 67.60

3 v of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemenis
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associafes LLIP
Chartered Accountants

IC Al firm registration mumber: 101049W/E3N0004

r Yogesh Midha
FPartner
Membership No.: 34941

Place: New Dethi
Date: June 15, 2021

N,
N,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Easy Trip Planners Limited

CIN - L63090DL200SPTC178141
}JI {/
Nishant Pitdi .-

Director

DIN: 02172265
Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021

Ashish Kumar Bangal
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi /2 e\

Date: June 15, 2021/~ /” \\
el

|

Mtie
Tector

DIN: 03136369
Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021

ok

Preeti Sharma
Company Secretary
Membership No: 34417
Place: New Delhi

Date: hune 15, 2021



Easy Trip Planners Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

All amgunts in INE million {unless otherwise stated)
(a) Equity Share Capital

Particulars

As at April 01, 201%

Add: Changes in equity share capital during the year
As at March 31, 202¢

Add: Changes in equity share capital during the year
As at March 31, 2021

(b) Other Equity

As at April 01, 2019

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax
Add: Bargain Purchase Gain

Total comprehenstve income for the year

Balance as at March 31,.2020

As at April 01, 2020

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

As at March 31, 2021

Nature and purpise of reserves

Retained garnings

Number of shares Amount
108.65 21729
108.65 217.29
108.68 217.2%

Retained ezrnings

Foreign Currency

ital
Capital resenve Translation Reserves

Total other Equity

462.03 - - 462.03
320.83 - - 32983
135 - {0.96) 039

- 2.97 - 297
331.18 297 11.96) 333.19
793.21 2.97 (0.96) 79522
79321 297 (0.96) 79522
610.10 - - 610.10
3.68 - 0.35 403
613.78 - 035 614.13
1.406.99 2.97 (0.61) 1.40935

Retained eamings represents cumulative profits of the Company, The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

Capital reserve
The Group recogni

bargain p

Foreizn Currency Translation Reserves

gam on acquisition of subsidiary as capital reserves.

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income as described in accounting policy and accumufated in a
separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when the net investment is disposed-off.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration nunber: 10 E049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.: 94941

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Easy Trip Planners Limited
CIN - L63090D2.2008PTC179041

e
(Dt

Nishapt-Pifti
Director

DIN: 02172265
Place: New Delhi

Date: June 15, 2021

Ashish Kumar Bansal
Chief Financial Officer

Place; New Delhi
Date: Junz 15, 2021

Jirector

DIN: 03136369
Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021

)

N’

S
Preeti Sharma
Company Secretary
Membership No: 34417
Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

1. Corporate Information

The Consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Easy Trip Planners Limited (formerly
known as "Easy Trip Planners Private Limited") (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively, ‘the
Group’) for the year ended March 31, 2021. The Holding Company was a private limited company domiciled in
India and incorporated on June 04, 2008 under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 replaced with
Companies Act 2013 w.e.f April 01, 2014, The registered office of the Holding Company is located at 223 Patparganj
Industrial Area, Delhi 110092. The Holding Company has become a Public Limited Company w.e.f. April 12, 2019
and consequently the name has changed from Easy Trip Planners Private Limited to Easy Trip Planners Limited.

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of providing reservation and booking services related to travel and
tourism through ease my trip-portal, ease my trip-app or in-house call-centre.

The Holding Company has completed its initial public offering (IPO) of 27,272,727 Equity Share of Face Value of
INR 2 each for cash at a price of INR 187 per Equity Share aggregating to INR 5,100 miltion through 100% Offer
for Sale. Pursuant to IPQ, the Equity Shares of the Holding Company got listed on Bombay Stock Exchange ("BSE")
and National Stock Exchange ("NSE") on March 19, 2021.

1.1 Basis of preparation

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 110 ‘Consolidated
Financial Statements’, prescribed under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended time to time.

These financial statements include consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the consolidated statement of
Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income and consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2021, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (together hereinafier referred to as "Consolidated Financial Statements” or "financial
statements").

These consolidated financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of directors on June 15, 2021.

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied, by the
Group, to all the years presented in the said consolidated financial statements.

The preparation of the said consolidated financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates
and judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas where estimates are significant to the financial statements, or areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity are disclosed in note 2.21.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of Indian Rupees and are rounded to
the nearest millions, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

1.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at March
31, 2021 (refer note 40 for details of the subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

* Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee) '

* Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

¢ The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: _—




Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2021
(ANl amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other
voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group cbtains control
over the subsidiary and ceascs when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments
are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as
that of the parent Company, i.e., for the year ended March 31, 2021. When the end of the reporting year of the parent
is different {rom that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial
information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the
financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date,

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in cach subsidiary and the parent’s portion of
equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill,

(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets,
such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that
requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary
differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income {OCT) are atiributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consoclidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction,
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

¢ Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained eamings,
as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

e & & o @




Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition- related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition
date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation
and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination
are measured at the basis indicated below:

»  Deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed.

If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the apgregate consideration transferred, the Group re-
assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the Kabilities assumed and reviews
the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. I the reassessment still results
in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in OCT and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through QOCI,

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash gencrating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

2.2 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
fransaction between marlket participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

+ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

*  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability




Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements an a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair valuc measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting year.

At cach reporting date, the Group analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

Fair value is the price at the measurement date at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a liability, in an
orderly transaction between market participants. The Group’s accounting policies require, measurement of certain
financial/ non-financial assets and liabilities at fair values (either on a recurring or non-recurring basis). Also, the
fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost are required to be disclosed in the said financial
statements.

The Group is required to classify the fair valuation method of the financial/ non-financial assets and liabilities,
either measured or disclosed at fair valuc in the financial statements, using a three-level fair value hierarchy
(which reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurement). Accordingly, the Group uses valuation
techniques that are appropriale in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable,




Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

2.3 Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle, held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting year, or cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting year.

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily for
the purpose of trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting year, or there is no
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting vear.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents.

2.4  Property, plant and equipment ('PPE")

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if; it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The initial cost of PPE comprises purchase price (including
non-refundable duties and taxes but excluding any trade discounts and rebates), borrowing costs if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that the future cconomic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss
at the time of incurrence.,

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based
on the useful lives estimated by the management which are in line with the useful lives prescribed in Schedule 11 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

The Group has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its PPE.

Particulars Years
Buildings 60
Furniture and fixtures Hij
Motor vehicles 10
Computers 3
Office equipment 5
Vehicle- Others 3

Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and hence, is not depreciated.

The vseful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, at-least
as at each reporting date so as to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected
pattern of economic benefits from these assets. The effects of any change in the estimated useful lives, residual
values and / or depreciation method are accounted prospectively, and accordingly the depreciation is calculated over
the PPE’s remaining revised useful life.




Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to consolidated finaneial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Group and cost of the item can be
measured reliably. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such components separately and depreciates them based on their specific useful lives. All
repair and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting year in which they are
incurred.

2.5 Intangible assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Group controls the asset, it is probable that future economic
benefits atiributed to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The Group amortizes
software over the best estimate of its useful life which is three years. Wehsite maintenance costs are charged to
expense as incurred.

The amortization period and the amorlization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected
useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed
prospectively. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the
amortization method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such changes are accounted for in accordance with
Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

2.6  Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impaicment loss, if any.

An investment in land or buildings, which is held by the Group to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both,
rather than intended to be for use by, or in the operations of, the Group, is classified as investment property.

The cost comprises purchase price, botrrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the investment property to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Depreciation on building component of investment property is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
60 years, which is in line with the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013

Deepreciation on leasehold land component of investment property is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
period of lease of 90 years, which is in line with the useful life prescribed in Schedule i1 to the Companies Act,
2013.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the vear of derecognition.

2.7  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
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When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. 1f no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the
asset’s ar CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment foss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

Impaiment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually, as appropriate, and when
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required. Such circumstances include, though are not limited to, significant or sustained decline in
revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic environment.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. To calculate value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market rates and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate
largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Fair value less costs to sell is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants, less the costs of disposal.

2.8 Leases
The Group has applied Ind AS 116 — ‘Leases’ using the full retrospective approach.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Group assesses whether:

- the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the
supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

- the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and
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- the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when it has the decision
making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where
the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Group has the right to direct
the use of the asset if either:

- the Group has the right to operate the asset; or
- the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it wilf be used.

Where the Group is the lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. Right-of-use
assels are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease [iabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial divect costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. The right of use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful
lives of right-of-use assets are delermined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the
right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements
of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generaily, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as
the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease tability comprise the following:

-- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

—variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

—amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

—the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain (0 exercise, lease payments in an
optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Tt is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes iis
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings. / > \
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The Groups applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
paymenits on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant
and equipment’ and lease liabilities in “other non-current financial liabilities’ in the statement of financial position.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of machinery
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease
payments associated with these [eases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies Section 2.8 Impairment of
non-financial assets.

Where the Group is the lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease is based on whether fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is
not expilicitly specified in an arrangement.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the
lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the Icase.

2.9  Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.10 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial assets

All financial assets are recoghized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the
acquisition of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to the fair

value measured on initial recognition of financial asset. Purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at
settlement date. IV
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance shect comprise cash in banks and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Classification

The Group determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition. Financial assets are
classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCT) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments), designated at fair
value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments) and
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial instruments at amortized cost
A financial instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in other income
in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. This category includes cash and bank balances, loans, unbilled revenue, trade and other receivables.

Financial instruments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVTOCI)
A financial instrument is classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

b} The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.
Financial instruments included within the OCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCI. On derccognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from OCI to statement of profit and loss.
Financial instruments at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (*FVTPL?)
Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at amortized cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, is classified at fair value through profit and loss. Financial instruments included in the
fair value through profit and loss category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified S_ebtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
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terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured at their fair
values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

*  The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109;
and

»  The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L., even on
sale of investment.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the statement of profit & loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the
Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

‘The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are
not fair valued through profit and loss. Lifetime ECL allowance is recognized for trade receivables with no
significant financing component. For all other financial assets, expected credit fosses are measured at an amount
equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case they are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to
adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Group follows simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

i} Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payabies
and other payables.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured either at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (ETR) method, or at fair value through profit or loss. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obliéation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
The gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.
211 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty.

"The Group assesses its revenue arrangement against specific criteria in order to determine ifit is acti ng as principal
or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as agent in case of sale of airline tickets and hotel packages as
the supplier is primarily responsible for providing the underlying travel services and the Group does not control
the service provided by the supplier to the traveller.

Ind AS 115 was issued on March 28, 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods o services to a customer, The Group has
adopted the new standard on the transition date using the full retrospective method.

Income from services
A. Air passage

Income from the sale of airline tickets is recognized as an agent on a net commission, incentives and fees on earned
basis net of discounts given to customers, as the Group does not assume any performance obligation post the
confirmation of the issuance of an airline ticket (o the customer. Group records allowance for cancellations at the
time of the transaction based on historical experience.

Incentives from airlines are considered as earned when the performance obligations under the incentive schemes are
achieved / expected to be achieved at the end of period.

The Group has measured the revenue in respect of its performance obligation of a contract at its standalone selling
price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence of its standalone
selling price.

The specific recognition criteria described below is also considered before revenue is recognised.
Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Group recognizes incentives from airlines when incentives are expected to be achieved as per the threshold
specified in the contract. To estimate the variable consideration, the Group applies the expected value method for
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contracts. The selected method that best predicts amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the amount
of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Group uses historical data for fotecasting future cancellations
to come up with expected cancellation percentages. These percentages are applied to determine the expected value
of the variable consideration,

B Hotels Packages

Income from hotel reservation is recognized as an agent on a net basis. Revenue is recognised at the time ofissuance
of hotel voucher including for non-refundable transactions as the Group does not assume any performance obligation
post the confirmation of the issuance of hotel voucher to the customer.

Packages assembled by individual travellers through packaging functionality on our websites generally includes a
merchant hotel component and some combinations of an air, car or destination services component. The individual
package components are accounted for as separate performance obligations and recognised in accordance with our
revenue recognition policies stated above. In few cases of corporate packages managed by the Group on an end to
end basis, the Group acts as a principal and takes full responsibility of delivering the services, the revenues are
recognised on a gross basis and cost of services against these packages is recognised as service costs.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade Reccivables

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in
section (2.11) Financial instruments.

Contract liabilities .

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer, If a customer pays consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract.

Non- eash Consideration

Ind AS 15 requires that the fair value of such non-cash consideration, received or expected to be received by the
customer, is included in the transaction price. The Group measures the non-cash consideration at fair value. If Group
cannot reasonably estimate the fair value of the non-cash consideration, the Group measures the consideration
indirectly by reference to the standalone selling price of the goods or services promised to the customer in exchange
for the consideration.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or
to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest tate, the Group estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Claims writien back
The Group recognise an expected breakage amount as income in proportion to the pattern of rights exercised by the
end-customer. Breakage amounls represents the amount of unexercised ri ghts which are non-refundable in nature as

per Group policies. o
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2.12 Forcign currency transactions
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the functional and presentational currency of the
Group.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the group
uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary asscts and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date. '

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the
exception of the following:

*  Exchange differences arising on monetary iterns that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a forei gn
operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the
individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that include
the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated financial statements when the foreign operation
is a subsidiary), such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCI These exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net mvestment.

* Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time, the cumulative amount is reclassified Lo profit or loss,

*  Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary {tems measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are transiated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising
on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to transtate income and expense items,
if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising
on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

2.13 Employee benefits (Retirement & Other Employee benefits)

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the Group has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. Ifthe contribution payable
to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution aiready paid.

The Group operates defined benefit plan for its employees, viz., gratuity. The costs of providing benefits under the
plan are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried out for using
the projected unit credit method. In accordance with the local laws and regulations, all the employees in India arc
entitied for the Gratuity plan. The said plan requires a lump-sum payment to eligible employees (meeting the
required vesting service condition) at retirement or termination of employment, based on a pre-defined formula. The
obligation towards the said benefits is recognised in the balance sheet, at the present value of the defined benefit
obligations less the fair value of plan assets (being the funded portion). The present value of the said obligation is
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determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using interest rates of government bonds. The interest
income / (expense) are calculated by applying the above-mentioned discount rate to the plan assets and defined
benefit obligations liability. The net interest income / (expense) on the net defined benefit liability is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. However, the related re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability are
recognised directly in the other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The said re-measurements
comprise of actuarial gains and losses (arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions),
the return on plan assets (excluding interest). Re-measurements are not re-classified to the statement of profit and
loss in any of the subsequent years.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
bencefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additionat amount that it expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

The Group presents the [eave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional
right to defer its settiement for 12 months afier the reporting date. Where Group has the unconditional legal and
contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability.

2,14 Income taxes

The income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the refated income tax is also recognised accordingly.

a. Current tax
The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates, laws and regulations, which have been enacted or
substantively enacted as at the reporting date. The payment made in excess / (shortfall) of the Group’s income
tax obligation for the year are recognised in the balance sheet as current income tax assets / liabilities. Any
interest, related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are not included in Income tax charge or
{credit), but are rather recognised within finance costs.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are off-sct against each other and the resultant net amount is presented
in the balance sheet, if and only when, (a) the Group currently has a legafly enforceable right to set-off the
current income tax assets and liabilities, and (b) when it relates to income tax levied by the same taxation
authority and where there is an intention to scitle the current income tax balances on net basis.

b, Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax [aws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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2.15 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution
is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India,
a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders or board of directors in Board meeting or
Annual General Meeting as applicable. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement
recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying
amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.16 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharcholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,
share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.17 Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value if the effect of time
value of money is not material and are determined based on the best estimate required 1o settle the obligation at the
reporting date. These cstimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

2.18 Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. The Group
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in financial statements.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less (that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and cash equivalents and subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value) and funds in transit. However, for the purpose of the statement of cash flows,

in addition to above items, any bank overdrafts / cash credits that are integral part of the Group's cash management,
are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

2.20 Segment reporting policies

Identification of segments — Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating
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segment for which the operating results are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource
allocation and performance measurement. For details, refer to note 32.

2.21 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Group and
are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future
events), that the Group believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. The said estimates are based on
the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide additional
evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date. Although the Group regularly assesses these estimates,
actual results could differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such estimates were
reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions do not turn out to be
substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in the financial statements in the year in which they
become known.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances
for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable
balances and historical experience. Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is grouped into homogeneous
groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade reccivables are written off when management
deems them not to be collectible are provided in note & and 36.

Defined benefit plans

The costs of post-retirement benefit obligation under the Gratuity plan are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension
increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. For details,
refer to note 26.

Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recarded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
present valuation technique. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations
of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. For details, refer to note 34 and 33,

Contingencies

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/independent experts.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the imterest rate implicit in the lease, thercfore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a simifar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.




Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain 1o be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to
renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leaschold improvements or significant customisation to the
leased asset).

Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not terminated). Termination options in given in lease of office space to the lease, which
have been included in the lease liability as Group is not intended to terminate the lease. Reason for not to exercise
the termination option is because Group requires the office premise for future period, location of office premise is
prominent and fease rentals are reasonable. There is no future cash outflow in respect to extension and termination
aption which is not included in the lease liability.

2.22Recent pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA")} through a notification, amended Schedule 111 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division L, II and 11 of Schedule IiI and are applicable from
April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division 11 which relate to companies whose financial statements are
required 1o comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

* Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head 'financial liabilities’, duly distinguished as
current ot non-current.

»  Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital
due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.
Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and
intangible asset under development. )

e Ifacompany has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial
institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

s Specific disclosure under 'additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of
arrangements, compliance with number of lavers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held
in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and
related parties, details of benami property held ete.

Statement of profit and loss:

* Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and erypto or
virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of consolidated
financial statemenis.

The Group will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.
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3 Properry, plant and equiy

Particulars Freehold Land Buildings Computers ?m“ . Vehicles Fotnl
equipments fixtures
Cont
As at April 01, 2019 52.87 6.69 4.05 4.23 0.73 6.13 74.72
Add: Additions made dunng the year - - 552 150 - 3.4 10.16
Less: Disposals during the year - - - (0.03) {0.06) - {0.0%)
As at March 31, 2020 52.87 6.69 .57 570 0.69 9.27 $4.79
Add: Addeiens made during the year - - 307 0.78 - - 385
Less. Dhsposals durinyg the year - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 52.87 6.69 12.64 648 0.69 927 8_3&
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01,2019 - 0.22 1.37 0.50 0.14 0.7¢ 3.3
Add: Depreciation charge for the year - ol 1.87 0.99 0.0% 0.92 398
Less: (Disposals) / adjustments during the year - - - . - - -
As at March 3, 2020 - 0.33 324 .79 0.23 1.62 7.21
Add: Depreciation charge for the year - 0.1 3.45 1.09 0.09 L12 5,86
Less: (Disposals) / adjustments during the year - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 - 044 6.69 2.88 032 .74 13.07
Net book valne
As at March 31, 2021 52.87 6.25 595 360 .37 6.53 75.57
As at March 31, 2020 52.87 6.36 6,33 3.9 0.46 7,65 77.58

(i) The Group has elected 10 centinue with the carrying value for all of its property. plant and equipment as recognised in its previeus GAAP financial statements as deemed cost on the transition date, 1.e. April 01,2017,

(ii) There is no capital werk in progress as at end of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021,

{this xpace has been intentionatly lofr hionk}
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4 Intangible assets

Gross block
As at April 01, 2019
Additions

Adjustment during the year

As at March 31, 2020
Additions

Adjustment during the year

As at March 31, 2021

Accumulated ameortisation

As at April 01, 2019
Charge for the year

Adjustment during the year

As at March 31, 2020
Charge for the year

Adjustment during the year

As at March 31, 2020

Net book value
As at March 31, 2021
As at March 31, 2020

Intangible assets under development

As at April 01, 2019

Add: Additions during the year
Less: Capitalization during the year

As at March 31, 2020

Add: Additions during the year
Less: Capitalization during the year

As at March 31, 2021

Computer Software Goodwill Total
0.64 . 0.64
1.41 15.96 17.37
=8 15.96 18.01
0.87 - 0.87
2.92 15.96 18.88
0.30 _ 0.30
0.49 = 0.49
0.79 - 0,79
0.68 R 0.65
1.47 i 147
1.43 15.96 17.41
1.26 15.96 17.22

Intangible assets
under development Total
333 3.33
3.33 333
3.33 3.33

The Group has ¢lected to continue with the carrying value for all of its intangible assets as recognised in its previous GAAP

financial statements as deemed cost on the transition date, i.e. April 01, 2017,

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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5

Investment property

Amount
As at April 01, 2019 85.40
Add: Additions made during the year -
Less: Disposals during the year {61.98)
As at March 31, 2020 23.42
Add: Additions made during the year -
Less: Disposals during the year -
As at March 31, 2021 23.42
Depreciation and impairment
As at April 01, 2019 1.90
Add: Depreciation charge for the year 0.49
Less: On disposals during the year (2.18)
As at March 31, 2020 0.21
Add: Depreciation charge for the year 0.08
Less: On disposals during the year -
As at March 31, 2021 0.29
Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2021 23,13
As at March 31, 2020 23.21

The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its investment property as recognised in its previous GAAP financial
statements as deemed cost on the transition date, .. April 01, 2017.

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
property

Rental income derived from investment properties - 6.30
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance} arising - -
from investment properties that did not generate rental income
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and - 6.30
indirect expenses
Less - Depreciation 0.08 0.49
Profit / (Loss) arising from investment properties before indirect
expenses

(0.08) 5.81

Fair Value of Investment properties

Number of investment properties 2 2
Fair value of investment properties outstanding as at that date 7140 69.06

Investment properties consists of land and buildings situated in India for rental income and capital appreciation. The fair values of investment
propertics have been determined by independent valuer. The fair valuation is based on prevailing market prices/ price trend of the property in
that tocality/ city considering the location, size of plot, approach road, amenities, locality ste,

{This space has been intentionally left blonk)
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6

()

b)

Financial assets

Loans {unsecured, considered good)
Now-Current
Security deposits

Current

Security deposits

Loans to employees

Loans to ather parties (Refer note 371 #
Total

Total current
Total nen- current

# It includes loan amounting to Nit (March 31, 2020 : [NR 114.51) to party which cease to be related after September 12, 2019.

Investments at fair value through profit and Ioss (FVTPL)

Current

Quoted mutual funds

755,510 {March 31, 2020: 755,510) units of INR 13.23 each fully
paid up of IDFC cash fund-growth

Total FVTPL investments

Current

Non-current

Total

Agyregate book value of quoted invesiments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments
Apggregate amount of impairment in the value of invesiments

(This spuce has been intentionally left blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.50 65.29
0.50 65.29
210,57 16.10
2.06 1.78
- 114.51
212.63 132.39
212,63 132,39
0.50 65.29
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
10,15 59,99
10.15 $.99
10.15 9.99
10.15 9.9?
10.15 9.99
9.99

10.15
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All amounts in ENR miltion {unless otherwise stated)

{c) Other financial assets

Non-current
Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months#

Current

Interest accrued

- On fixed deposits

- On security deposits

Receivable from related parties™ (refer note 30)
Receivable from others parties

Amount recoverable from airlines

Advances recoverable against property

Total

Toial current
Total non- current

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
138,16 150.23
138.16 150.23
26.58 42,62
0.96 0.51
- 79.45
- 1.22
45,21 15.47
- 65.00
775 204.27
21091 354.50
72,75 204.27
138,16 150.23

#Bank deposits as at March 31, 2021 include INR 22.50 (March 31, 2020: NIL) pledged with banks against bank guarantees, bank overdraft and credit card

facility.

* Receivable from related parties includes amount receivable from "Selling shareholders” for expenses incurred during initial public offering (the offer’) through
offer for sale. All expenses with respect to the Offer is borne by the Selling Shareholders in proportion to the Equity Shares offered by each of them in the Offer.
The total IPO expenses incurred amounting to INR 391,32 (inclusive of taxes) have been recovered from Selling sharcholders in the current year pursuant to [PO.

(This space has heen intentionally left blunk)
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7 Other assets

Nan-current
Capital Advance

Current

Prepaid expenses

Tax paid under protest

Advance to employees

Advance 1o suppliers

Credit impaired

Advance to suppliers

Less: Provision for doubtful advances
Total

Set out below is the movement in the Provision for doubtful advances on Advance to suppliers:

Balances at the beginning of the year
Provision for doubtful advance
Balances at the end of the year

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1.12 -
1.12 -
As at Ag at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1.32 0.90
9.60 9.60
- 0.15
804.53 280.08
32.76 23.01
(32.76) (23.01)
815.45 290.73
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
23.01 -
9.75 23.0t
32.76 23.01
; ~
(& N\ \
[ / \
| >=| ]
I“. I'.
\‘\ :
o
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8 Trade receivables
{2} Details of trade receivables is as follows:

(b

b=

Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade receivables 289.03 581.92
289.03 581.92

Trade receivables include unbilled receivables of INR 114.30 (March 31, 2020 : INR 342.62) and represents the gross amount of air ticket and
hotel packages and receivabe of other travel services to be collected from customers.

Break-up for security details ;

As at Ag at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade Receivables
Considered good - unsecured 289,03 581.92
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk* 80.62 70.97

369.65 652.89
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debis)
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk (80.62) (70.97)
Total Trade receivables 289.03 581.92

* Including INR 2.23 (March 31, 2020: INR 2.23) recoverable from B2B agents against which the Group also filed a complaint in 2020 against
ex-employees suspecting collusion.

Movement in expected credit loss allowance As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balances at the beginning of the year 70.97 38.50
Additions during the year / year 9.65 3247
Balances at the end of the years 80.62 70.97
Notes: e

I For terms and conditions relating to retated party receivables, refer note 30.

2 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 30 days. N

(This space has been intentionally left blank) NG|
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9 Cash and cash equivalents

(i) Details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash on hand 212 2.32
Funds in transit 83.83 10.67
Balances with banks:
Current account 340.47 121.15
Total 426.42 i34.14

(a)  Funds in transit represents the amount collected from customers through credit or debit cards / net banking which is outstanding as at
the year end and credited to the company's bank accounts subsequent to the year end.
‘(b) Balance in current account includes INR 0.04 {March 31, 2020: Nil) which is in nature of restricted cash.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at Adat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balances with banks:

Current account 340.47 121.15
Funds in fransit 83.83 10.67
Cash on hand 2.12 2.32
Total 426.42 134.14
Less - Bank overdraft (Refer note 12) (100.68) -

325.74 134.14
(i) Other bank balances
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Deposits with remaining maturity of less than twelve months 1,858.32 1,177.95
1,858.32 1,177.95

Bank deposits as at March 31, 2021 include INR 770.86 (March 31, 2020: INR 592.32) pledged with banks against bank guarantees,
bank overdraft and credit card facility.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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10 Equity Share Capital

(a) Dretails of share capital is as follows:

Equity share eapital

Autheriged share capital
125,000,000 (March 31, 2020: 125,000,000) equity shares of INR 2/- each,

Issued, subscribed and Mly paid-up share capital
108,645,000 {March 31, 2020: 108,545,000} equity shares of INR 2/- each

b R iliation of

issued and subscribed share capitak:

(1} Reconciliation of anthorised share capital as at year end ;

Ordinary Equity shares

As at April 01, 2019 (Equity shares of INR 2 each)
Increase during the year

As at March 31, 2020 (Equity shares of INR 2 each)
Increase during the year

As at March 3, 2021 {Equity shares of INR 2 each)

(i) Reconciliation of issned, subseribed and fully paid-up share capital as at year ¢nd :

Ordinary Equity share

As at April 01, 2019 (Equity shares of INR 2 each)
Increase during the year

As at March 31, 2020 (Equity shares of INR 2 each})
Increase during the year

As at March 31, 2021 (Equity shares of INR 2 each)

{¢) Terms/Righis aitached to equity shares

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
250.00 250.00
217.29 217.2%
217.2% 217.29
Equity shares —

No. of shares Amount
125.00 250,04
125.00 250,00
125.00 250.00

Equity shares

No. of shares Amount
108.65 217.29
108.65 21729
108.65 217.29

The Company has only ome class of equity shares having a par value of INR 2 per share (March 31, 2020 : INR 2/~ each) . Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of

liquidation of the Company., the holders of the equity shares will be entitled 1o yeceive any of the remaining assets of the C:

pany, after

of all prefe

izl amounts. The distribution will be in

proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. The Company has not paid any dividend during the year ended March 31, 2021 and year ended March 31, 2020,

el

Details of shareholders holding more than $% shares in the company

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Npme of Shareholder — o e v
No.afshavesheld o Uolimginthe o hereched o roMdinginhe
eyuity shares equit. shares
Nishant Pitri 4048 37.26% 54,119,561 49.81%
Rikant Fittie 40.34 37.13% 53,972,760 49.68%

The Company has completed its initial public offering (IPO) of 27.272,727 no of Equity Share of face value of INR 2 each for of its equity shares through Offer for Sale, which have been listed on BSE

Limited ("BSE"} and National Stock Exchange of India Limited { “NSE") with effect from March 19, 2021,

As per the recosds of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ bers and other declaration: | from sharehold ding benefici
Tegal and beneficial ownerships of shares.
(e) Aggregate number of Shares allotted as fully paid by way of bonus shares (during 5 years i i pr ing March 31, 2021);

| interest, the above sharcholding represents both

Aggregate number
Particulars of shares issned in 5§ March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2617
vears —
Equity shares allotied as fully paid bonus shares by capitatisation
of Securities Premium Account 17,190 : ) : ~.117,190 )
fiquity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by
cayitalization of lated [rofits 72,430,000 | B 72,430,000
{Thix spacy hos beer intentionally fefi blank)
.f‘. -
f §




Easy Trip Planners Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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(2)

()

(©)

i2

Other Equity
Retained earnings

As at April 01, 2019

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax
As at March 31, 2020

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
As at March 31, 2021

Capital Reserves (Refer note 39)
As at April 01, 2019
Increasef(decrease) during the year
As at March 31, 2020
Increase/(decrease) during the year
As at March 31, 2021

Foreign Currency Translation Reserves
As at April 01, 2019

Other comprehensive loss tor the year

Asg at March 31, 2020
Increase/(decrease) during the year

As at March 31, 2021

Borrowings

Current {Secured)

Short term loans repayable on demand

Loan repayable on demand (from bank)
Bank overdrafts (secured)

Amount

462.03
320.83
1.35

79321
610.10
3.68
1,406.99

297

2.97

2.97

(0.96)

{0.96)

0.35

(0.61)

As at March
31,2021

Asat
March 31, 2020

72.73

100.68

67.60

173.41

67.60

Short term borrowings from ICICT Bank UK PLC of INR 72.73 (GBP 0.72 Mn) {March 31, 2020: INR 67 60 {GBP 0.72 Mn)) towards working capital
Loan facility demand was carried aggregate of LIBOR and margin rate which was of 2% ( March 31, 2020: 2%,). Further, berrowings were repayable at

the end of 12 months from the date of renewal of agreement i e. Pecember 30, 2021,

Bank overdraft facility from 1C1CI Bank UK PLC of limit INR 100.68 (GBP 1 Mn) (March 31, 2020 Nil) was utilised by the Group. It carried aggregate
interest of 1.5% + LIBOR. Further, limit is available for 12 months from the sanction date i.c. September 30, 2021.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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13 Trade payables

{a) Details of trade payables is as follows:

Current

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total

(i} Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60 day terms.
(if} Refer note 30 for trade payables to telated partics.

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.15 -
255.85 266.39
256.00 266.39

(#ii) The amount due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006"
("MSMED") has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with Group. The disclosures relating

to the micro, small and medium enterprises is disclosed as under:

Particubars

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year

Principal amount due to micre and small enterprises

Interest due thereon

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year/year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act.

The amount of interest:

Accrued at the end of each accounting year / year

Rermaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year / year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year / year, until such
date when the interest dues as above are aclually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

(b) Other financial liabilities

Current

QOther payable

Salary payahle

Payable to related parties (Refer note 30)
Interest acerued on loan

Total

i4 Contract liability

Deferred revenue {refer note 18(c))
Advance from customers (refer note 18(c))

Total

Total current
Total non- current

As at Asal
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.15 -
As at As at
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,028.53 702,39
10.40 14.92
35.04 -
0.35 -
1,074.32 71731
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
344.55 42528
242,77 19139
587.32 516.67
374.88 22985
212.44 3186 82
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15

(a)

16

Provisions

Details of provisions are as follows:

A. Non- current

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 26)
Total (A)

B. Current

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity {refer note 26)
Provision for compensated absences
Total (B)

Total (A+B)

Total current
Total non- current

Other liabilities

Current

Provident fund payable

Tax deduction at source payable
Goods and service tax payable
Others

Total

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
18.27 17.33
1827 17.53
0.36 0.23
4.63 271
4.99 294
23.26 2047
4.99 294
18.27 17.53
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1.27 1.47
39.59 1.80
68.78 79.66
.16 0.19
109.80 83.12
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17

(n

(iii)

(a)

Income tax

The major components of income tax expense are:

Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:
Tax Expense:

Current income

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination end reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Other comprehensive income (OCH) section

Deferred tax relating to items in OCI in the year:
Re-measurement gains/ {losses) on defined benefit plans
Exchange gain on translation of foreign operations

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate(s)

Profit before income taxes

At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2020: 25.168%)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes

Adjustment of tax related to earlier year

Cthers

Income tax expense

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Liabilities for current tax (net)

Tax liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net)

(This space has been intentionally left blark)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
226.27 132.52
1.00 -
(3.52) {3.53)
223.75 128.98
Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(1.24) {0.45)
- 0.32
(1.24) 10.13)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
833.85 458.81
209.86 119.07
7.93 215
- 721
5.95 0.55
223,74 128.98
223.75 128.98
223.75 128.98
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
126.09 114.77
126.09 114.77
/.' g Y
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Deferred tax asset (net): Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fixed assets; impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged fot the 031 0.10
financial reporting ) ’
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year and earlier years but 14.05 1211
allowable for tax purposes on payment basis : ’
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables 18.51 18.18
Net deferred tax asset (net) 32.87 30.59

Consolidated Statement of profit and [oss

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Accelerated depreciation and amortisation for tax purposes {0.01) 0.45
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year and earlier year but (3.18) 269
allowable for tax purposes on payment basis ' ‘
Allowange for impairment of trade receivables (0.32) (6.97)
Deferred tax {(income) (3.51) (3.53)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balance of deferred tax asset (net) 30.59 27.19
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss 3.52 353
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in OCI (1.24) (0.13)
Closing balance of deferred tax asset (net) 32.87 30.59

Notes:
1 The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. In addition, the Group has an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise
the deferred tax assets and settle the deferred tax liabilities simultaneousty.

2 In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable, that some portion, or all, of the deferred tax assets will not be
realised. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets 13 dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the years in which the temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the
level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable incomes over the vears in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes
that it is probable that the Group will be able to realise the benefits of those deductible differences in future.

3 The Group has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income - tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment)
Ordinance, 2019 dated September 20, 2019, Accordingly, during the year ended March 31,2021, the Group has recognised the provision for income tax and
remeasured its deferred tax assets basis the rate prescribed thereby and the related impact is recognised. The impact of change in tax rate on deferred tax assets is
disclosed above.
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18 Revenue from operations

(a)

b)

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers:

For the year ended For the year ended March

March 31, 2021 31, 2020
Type of goods or service
Rendering of services
Air passage 968.46 1,171.78
Hotel Packages 3.72 67.34
Other services 8.89 7.51
Total revenue from contracts with customers (A) 981.07 1,246.63

Given that Group's products and services are available on a technology platform to customers globally, consequently, the
necessary information to track accurate geographical location of customers is not available.

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time 981.07 1,246.63
Services transferred over time - .
Total revenue from contracts with customers 981.07 1,246.63

Set out below, is the reconciliation of the revenue from operations with the amounts disclosed in the segment information:

For the year ended For the yvear ended March

March 31, 2021 31,2020
Revenue
External customers 981.07 1,246.63
Inter-segment - -
981.07 1,246.63
Inter-segment adjustments and eliminations - -
Total revenue from contract with eustomers 981.07 1,246.63
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(©)

(M

(i)

Contract balances

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade receivables 289.03 581.92
Contract liabilities 587.32 616.67

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 30 days. In March 31, 2021, INR 8 Mn (March 31,
2020: INR 27.03 Mn) was recognised as impairment allowance of {rade receivables.

Contract liabilities consists of deferred revenue of INR 344.55 (March 31, 2020: INR 425.28) which is advance received towards
productivity incentive which will be recognised as revenue on the basis of active and confirmed segment bookings.

(iii} Contract liabilities also consists of advance from customers of INR 242.77 (March 31, 2020: INR 191.39) which refers to advance

(d)

(&)

M

received from B2B customers (travel agents) and corporate customers for issue of tickets and hotel packages. The Group acts as an
agent in such cases, hence, only a part of this advance i.e. Commission income from such advance will be transferred to revenue.
There are no significant movements in these balances throughout the years presented.

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:
For the year ended For the year ended March

March 31, 2021 31, 2020
Revenue as per contracted price 1,576.78 2,487.48
Adjustments
Less:- Discounts offered to customers on airline ticket 595.71 1,240.85
booking
Revenue from contracts with customers 981.07 1,246.63

Performance obligations
Information about the Group's performance obligations are summarised below:

The transaction price allocated to the remaining petrformance obligations {unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are as follows:

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Within one year 374.88 229.85
More than one year 212.44 386.82
587.32 616.67

The performance obligations expected to be recognised in more than one year relate to Global Distribution System (“GDS™)
provider for facilitating the booking of airline tickets on its software that is to be satisfied beyond cne year. All the other
remaining performance obligations are expected to be recognised within one year.

Other operating revenue

For the year ended For the year ended March

March 31, 2021 31,2020
Advertisement revenue* 86.03 166.97
Total other operating revenue (B) 86.03 166.97
Total revenue from operations (A + B) 1,067.10 1,413.60

* Advertising revenue majorly comprises of fees for facilitating website access to a travel insurance company and co-funding
arrangements with a banking company wherein a part of discount is borne by the banking company. r——

-
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Other income

Interest income:
On deposits with bank
On loans
On others
Dividend income
Rental income
Liabilities no longer required written back
Exchange differences
Profit on sale of investment property
Bad debts and advances written off recovered
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Claims written back
Miscellaneous Income
Total

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to PF and other funds (Refer note 26)
Gratiity expenses (Refer note 26)

Staff welfarc expenscs

Total

Finance costs

Interest on:
Overdrafts
Borrowings
Others

Bank charges

Total

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of investment property
Depreciation on right-of-use

Total

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
95.87 53.38
12.73 35.57
0.45 -
0.23 0.13
0.00 7.46
5.55 36.92
0.11 -
- 17.69
4.69 38.50
0.05 -
317.93 200.86
2.84 -
440.45 396.51
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
200.72 282.87
4.95 9.19
5.78 6.82
0.49 3.08
211.94 301.96
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.74 0.41
2.34 0.92
28.84 28.37
342 3.32
35.34 33.02
For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
5.86 3.98
0.68 0.49
0.08 047
- 2,13
6.62 7.07
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(a)

(b}

Other expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Power and fuel 2.78 596
Rent 213 295
Rates and taxes 2.99 2275
Insurance 1.03 19
Repair and maintenance
- Plant and machinery 1.50 2.75
- Building 1.29 4.80
- Others 16.99 22.46
Advertising and sales promotion 147.84 269.94
Commission 2.06 80.29
Travelling expenses 0.42 15.94
Communication costs 339 7.07
Printing and stationery 0.79 1.59
Impairment allowance of trade reccivables 9.65 3247
Legal and professional expenses 11.50 19.76
Payment to auditors 3.54 3m
Advance written off 3.56 9.02
Loss on ticket booking - 0.46
Bad debts 13.26 15.71
Provision for doubtful advances 9.78 23.01
Credit card charges 25.71 73.54
CSR expenditure (refer details below) [Refer note (b) below] 547 597
Outsourcing Expense 4.08 -
Provision for Contingent liabilities 1.50 -
Payment gateway charges 147.65 349.28
Miscellancous expenses $.92 .06
419.80 971.70
Details of payment made to auditors are as fellows:
For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
As auditors;
Audit fee* 3.50 2.50
Others Services 0.04 .07
In other capacity
Reimbursement of expenses - 0.44
3.54 3.01

*This amount does not include fees paid to auditors in relation to the offer which is recovered from selling shareholders.

Details of CSR expenditure:

For the year ended

Far the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the vear 5.47 447
{b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the vear 5.47 447
Particuiars Paid in cash Yet to be paid Total

Amount spent during the year ended on March 31, 2021

i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
i) On purposes other than (i) above 9.50 0.44 9.94
Amount spent during the vear ended on March 31, 2020:

i} Construction/acquisition of any asset - . -
lii} On purposes other than (i) above 1.50 4.47 5.97
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()

(b)

(©)

Components of Other Comprehensive Income

Retained earnings

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) an defined benefit plans 492 1.80
Income tax effect (1.24) (0.45)
Exchange loss on translation of foreign operations 0.35 (1.28)
Income tax cffcct - 0.32
4.03 0.39

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the profit and share capital data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the vear 108.65 108.65
Equity shares issued during the year - -
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (in million) 108.65 108.65
Total Operations for the year
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company 610.10 329.83
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of diluted EPS (no. in 108.65 108.65
Earnings per share [Nominal value INR 2 per share] 5.62 3.04

Weighted average number of shares is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year adjusted by the number of
equity shares issued during year, multiplied by the time weighting factor. The time weighting factor is the number of days for which the

specific shares are outstanding as a proportion of total number of days during the year.
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26 Employee Benefits

A. Defined Contribution Plans
The Group has a defined contribution plan. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per
regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Group is limited to the amount
contributed and it has no further contractual ner any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is
INR 4.95 (March 31, 2020: INR 9.19). The plan is funded.

B. Defined Benefit Plans
Grateity:
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have completed five years of service are entitled to
specific benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary refirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit
equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months subject to maximum limit of INR 2
million. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement or death whichever is earlier.
The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected
unit eredit methad, which recognises cach year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately
to build up the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determming
the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds as at the date of actuarial valuation,
Actuarial gains and losses (net of tax) are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income {OCI).

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profits or losses and the funded status and amounts

recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Movement in obligation

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Present value of abligation at beginning of the year 17.77 12.75
Interest cost 1.21 1.14
Current service cost 4.57 5.86
Actuarial loss on obligation
- Economic assumptions - 2.68
- Demographic assumptions - 0.01
- Experience adjustment (4.92) (4.49)
Benefits paid - (0.18)
Present vailue of obligation at the closing of the year 18.63 17.77
Balance Sheet
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Present value of defined benefit obligation 18.63 17.77
Fair value of plan assets - -
Present value of defined benefit obligation (net) 18.63 17.77
Expenses recognised in Statement of profit and loss
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current service cost 4,57 5.68
Interest cost on: benefit obligation 1.21 114
Net benefit expense 5.78 6.82
Expenses recognised in Statement of other comprehensive income
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Actuarial {gains) / losses
- change in financial assumptions - 2.68
- change in demographic assumptions - 0.01
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) (4.92) {4.49)
4.92) (1.80)
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The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Group's defined benefit obligations are set out below:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount rate 6.76% 6.08%
Future salary increase 10.00% 10 00%
Average expected future working life {years) 28.16 28.22
Expected rate of retumn on plan asset Not applicable Not applicable
Retirement age (vears} 58.00 58.00
0, - 0, -
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability* 100% of Iﬁ])‘M (2012 100% of IALM (2012-14)
Withdrawal rate (per annum)
Up to 30 vears 5.00% 5.00%
- From 31 years to 44 years 3.00% 3.00%
- From 44 years to 58 years 2.00% 2.00%

*Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate represents published mortality table used for mortality assumption,

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Impact of the change in discount rate

a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (1.61) (1.58)
b} Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 1.81 1.77
Impact of the change in salary increase

a) lmpact due to increase of (.50 % 1.41 1.39
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (1.37) (1.38)

The sensitivily analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year. These analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping
all other assumptions constant and may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in
assumpticns would occur in isolation of one another.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit obligation in future years:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Year 1 0.36 023
Year 2 0.47 0.52
Year 3 0.64 0.47
Year 4 0.53 0.58
Year 5 0.53 0.51
Year 6 onwards 16.10 15.45
Total expected payments : 18.63 17.77

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the repurting year is 17.66 years (March 31, 2020: 17.76 years).

{This space has been imentionally left blank)
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27 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

(2)

(b)

(c)

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcotnes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years.

Judgemenis
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has not made any significant judgement, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Group has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes aie
reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the receivable balances and historical
experience adjusted for forward-looking estimates. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
simplified approach to measure expected credit losses. Individual trade receivables are written off when management
deems them not to be collectible.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and martality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assurnptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated
in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of
the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future
inflation rates for India.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readity determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The [BR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment.
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28 Commitments and contingencies

(A} Contingent liabilities

(a)

(b}

(©)

(d)

(e)

(B)

Asat Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts

- Litigation & claims (Refer Note (a) below) 667,68 667.68
- Service tax demand (Refer Note (b) below) 93.22 93,18
- Guarantegs (Refer Note (c¢) below) 165,50 210.00
- Income tax demand (Refer Note (d) below) 356.98 356,98
Total 1,283.38 1,327.84

The Group has ongoing legal cases against the Group on account of varieus matters including recovery of moneys advanced in the course of business, infringement
of trademarks and seeking damages thereof. The cumulative amounts claimed against the Group in these cases is INR 667.68; details of which are mentioned

(i) Air Worth Travel & Tours Private Limited; one of the ticketing partner with the Group, has filed claim of INR 574.62 against the Group on grounds of claiming
wrongful refunds on flown tickets, failed to make payment of cancellation charges, lower ticket charges for higher class tickets, excess refunds claimed. This case
against the Group is pending for acceptance by the Honourable High Court of Delhi.

Further, the Group had also filed a case against Air Worth amounting to INR 92.50 in 2015 on account of advances given to them for ticketing business and is

nendine for hearings
(ii) Paytm, the e-commerce platform provider, managed by One97 Communications Limited has filed a case against the Group for nen-payment of cancellation

refunds of INR 53.06 for the year till May 2017 which have been paid by Paytm to its customers on behalf of EMT, non-payment of performance linked bonus, etc.
The matter is pending in Arbitration Proceedings.

(iii) MakeMyTrip has filed a claim of INR 40 for Permanent Injunction Restraining Infringement of Trademarks, Copyrights, Passing Off, Dilution of Goodwill,
Unfair Competition, Rendition of Accounts of Profits/Damages, Delivery Up ete for use of similar name. The matter is pending before the Hon’ble High Court of

Delhi.
The Group based on assessment of its legal counsel believes that any chances of liability devolving upon the Group upen final conclusion of the cases mentioned

above in Court of Law, is not probable and hence has not provided for any amounts in the financial statements towards any adverse outcome of these cases.

The Group had an outstanding service tax demand of INR 30.62 for the financial years 2012-13 to 2016-17 pertaining to incorrect availment of Cenvat credit on
input services in cases where it has taken abatement and exemptions for provision of output services. The Group in December 2019 has paid INR 15.31 under
section 127 of Finance (No. 2) Act, 2019 read with rule ¢ of the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Scheme, 2019) as full and final settlement against such demand. As per
the scheme, such payments would not be construed as admission of liability for any subsequent vears if assessed under the GST regime. Further, the Group based
on internal assessment and expert opinion believes chances of any liability develving on this matter is not probable and hence have not provided for any amounts in
the financial statements which if computed for years subsequent to FY 2016-17 shall be INR 93.22 (March 31, 2020: INR 93.18).

(i) INR 120 (March 31, 2020: INR. 120): 'The Group has given joint bank guarantees to Travel Agents Federation of India (“TAFT") in respeet of air travel business.
(ii) INR 20 (March 31, 2020: INR 28): ‘The Group has given bank guarantces to International Air Transport Association{"IATA") in respect of air travel business.
(iii) INR 25,5 (March 31, 2020: INR NIL): The Company has given Bank guarantee to National Stock Exchange of India Lid. (NSE) in accordance with the
conditions precedent for NSE to function as the 'Designated stock exchange' for the Initial public offer of the Company.

A search under section 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 was carried out at the premises of the holding Company of the Group by the Income Tax authorities
during the financial year 2017-18. On December 27th, 2019, the Group has received demand orders amounting to INR 356.98 for financial years 2011-12 to 2016-
17 pertaining to disallowances of certain expenses and addition of sales. The Group is contesting these demands at the Appellate level and basis its internal
assessment and expert opinion it beligves that the likelihcod of these demands being sustained is not probable and hence has not accrued any amounts towards
There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court {SC) judgement on PF dated 28th February, 2019. As a maiter of caution, the Group has
made a provision on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The Group will update its provision, on receiving further clarity on the subject.

Capital commitment

At March 31, 2021, the Group had commitments of INR 0.56 (March 31, 2020: INR 0.56) relating to software implementation contract remaining to be executed
and net provided for.
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29 Leases
Group as a lessee
The Group has lease contract for office premise having lease term of 3 years. The Group's ebligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased

assets. The Group has also lease contracts for office premise having term of 12 months or less. The Group applies the *short-term lease” recognition exemptions for
that lcase contracts.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Aumount
As at April 01, 2019 -
Additions 6.64
Depreciation expense (2.13})
Adjusted during the year (4.51)
As at March 31, 2020 -
Additions
Depreciation expense -
As at March 31, 2021 -
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Amount
As at April 01, 2019 -
Additions 6.55
Accretion of interest 0.54
Payments (2.31)
Adjusted during the year (4.78)
As at March 31, 2020 -
Additions -
Accretion of interest -
Payments -

As at March 31, 2021 -

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10%, with maturity between 2020-2022,

During the financial year 2019-20, the Group has vacated its office on which Right of Use ("ROU") and the lease liability has been created as per Ind AS 116.
Accordingly, the carrying value of ROU and corresponding lease liability of INR 4.51 and INR 4.78 respectively and the difference INR 0.27 has been recorded as

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as follows:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Within one year
Afler 1 year but not more than five year - -
More than five year - -
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets - 213
Interest expense on lease liabilities - 0.54
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 2143 295
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 213 5.62

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of INR 2,13 (March 31, 2020: INR 5.62).

Group as a lessor

The Group has entered into operating lease on its investment property portfelio consistin 5 manufacturing buildings (sec Note 5). These lease have term of five year.
Rental income recognised by the Group during t_hc vear is Nil (March 31, 2020: INR 5.62).
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30 Related Party Disclosures

(a) Names of related parties and related party relationship

(i) Enterprises owned or significantly
influenced by key managerial personnel or

(ii} Key managerial personnel {KMP)

(iii} Relative of Key managerial personnel

1. Near Group Services Private Limited

2. Snoby Private Limited

3. Thai Arrivals ¢til! April 30, 2019)

4. Easy Productions Pvi Ltd (till September 12, 2019)

1. Prashant Pitti (Whoie Time Director)

2. Nishant Pitti {Chief Executive Officer and Whole Time Director)

3. Rikant Pittie (Whole Time Director)

4. Maxy Franeis Assis Fernandes (Independent Director) (w.e.f July 02, 2019 to Feb 18, 2020y
5. Satya Prakash (Independent Director) (w.e.f July 2, 2019)

6. Usha Mehra (Independent Director) (w.e.f July 2, 2019)

7. Vinod Kumar Tripathi (Independent Director} (w.e.f Feb 24, 2020)

§. Abani Kant Jha (Chief Financial Officer) {(w.e.f May 10,2019 to August 31, 2020)

9. Preeti Sharma (Company Secretary) (w.e.f April 2, 2019)

10. Ashish Kumar Bansal (Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f February 08, 2021)

Anil Pitti (Father of Mr. Prashant Pitti, Mr, Nishant Pitti and Mr. Rikant Pittie)
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Related Party Disclosures (Contd...)

(d) Details of related party transactions are as below;

For the year ended March 31, 2021

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars

Enterprises owned
or significantly
influenced by key
managerial
personnel or their
relatives

Relative of
KMP

KMP

Enterprises owned or
significantly
influenced by key
managerial personnel
or their relatives

Relative of
KMP

KMP

(A) Salary paid during the vear

Nishant Pitti

40.80

39.51

Prashant Pitti

9.60

9.60

Rikant Pittie

30.00

28.61

Abazni Kant Jha

0.70

543

Preeti Sharma

0.42

0.72

Ashish Bansal

0.76

(B) Director sitting fees paid during the vear

Maxv Francis Assis Fernandes

0.40

Salyva Prakash

0.52

0.31

Usha Mehra

0.51

0.40

Vinod Kumar Tripathi

0.51

0.10

(C) Rent income earned

Near Group Services Pvt Lid

1.15

(D) Rent expenses paid

Mr. Nishant Pitti

0.30

0.90

(E) Purchase of Services

Thai Arrivals#

3.90

Snoby Private Limited

0.20

(F) Service Fee

Nishant Pitti

1.42

Rikant Pittie

1.42

(G) Loans given

Easy Productions Pvt Ltd"

33550

(H) Repayment

Easy Productions Pvt Ltd"

139.55

(I} Reimbursement expenses incurred on behalf
of

Nishant Pitti

165.53

29.92

Rikant Pittie

164.74

27.76

Anil Pitti

(J) Interest Amount

Easy Productions Pvt Ltd”

15.02

(K) Sale of investment Property

Anil Pitti

77.50

(L) Purchase of equity shares from Rikant Pittie

Easem trip Middleeast DMCC

1.I5

Sinuapore Arrivals Pte Lid

7.66




Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Related Party Disclosures (Conid...)

As at March 31, 2021 Asg at March 31, 2020
Enterprises owned Enterprises owned
or significantly or significantly
farticutars irfiEcated h_y ey Relative of KMP KMP ifluShesd by key Relative of KMP KMP
managerial managerial
personnel or their personnel or their
relatives relatives

{A) Balance receivable at the vear end
Nishant Pitti - - - . - 40.08
Rikant Pittie - - - . - 38.02
Anil Pitti - - - - 135 -
Near Group Services Pyt Lid - - - 0.21 - -
(B) Balance Pavahle at the vear end
Nishant Pitti - : 1511 - - 1.42
Rikant Pittie 19,93
Prashant Pitti - - 0.27 - - 0.54
Snoby Privaie Limited*** - - - 0.00 - -

~ Easy Production Pvt Ltd ceases to be related party alter September 12, 2019. Balance receivable from Easy Production Pvt Lid as at September 12, 2019 amounts to
INR 263.13.

# Thai Arrtvals ceases to be related party with effect from May 01, 2019. Balance payable to Thai Arrivals as at April 30, 2019 amounts to INR 43,85,
*¥#* Absolute balance as at March 31, 2020 of Snoby Private Limited is INR 4,963

(b) Key management personnel compensation

Particulars For the vear For the year
ended March 31, ended March 31,
Short term employee benefits B2.28 83.87
Sitting fees 1.54 1.2
Total compensation 83.82 85,07

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting year related to key management personnel.

The remuneration to the key management personnel does not include the provision made for gratuity & leave benefit, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the
Group as & whole.

Terms and conditions of iransactions with related parties

The sale and purchase from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevailing arm's length transaction. QOutstanding balances at the year end are
unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. for the year ended March 31, 2021, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to
amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2020 :Nil). This assessment in undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party
and the market in which the related party operates. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. There were no
commitments given to related parties,

(This space hus been infentionally left blank) g ' 4 \
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

31

32

Interim Dividend

The Holding Company's Beard of Directors at its meeting held on April 19, 2021 declared an interim dividend of INR 2 per equity share for the financial year ended
March 31, 2021. Since dividend amounting to INR 217.29 (March 31, 2020: Nil} is declared subsequent to Mach 31, 2021, it is not recognised at the end of reporting
year.

Segment Information

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is organized into Lines of Business (LOBs) based on its products and services and has following reportable segments based on
the nature of the products, the risks and returns, the organisation structure and the infernal financial reporting systems. The segment results are regularly reviewed and
pertormance is assessed by its Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) i.e. whole-time director. LOB wise profits before taxes, finance costs, other income,
depreciation and amortisation are reviewed by CODM on monthly basis. The whole time director(s) monitor the operating results of its business units separately for
the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

Air Ticketing: Through an internet and mobile based platform and call-centres , the Group provides the facility to book and service international and domestic air
tickets to ultimate consumer through B2C {Business To Consumer) and B2B2C (Business to Business to Consumer) channel. Both these channels share similar
characteristics as they are engaged in facilitation of air tickets. Management believes that it is appropriate to ageregete these two channels as one reporting segment
due to similarities in ihe nature of business.

Hotels Packages: The Group provides holiday packages and hotel reservations through call-centers and branch offices. The hotef reservations form integral part of
the holiday packages and accordingly management believes that it is appropriate to aggregate these services as one reportable segment due to similarities in the nature
of services.

Other operations primarily include the advertisement income from hosting advertisement on its internet web-sites, income from safe of rail and bus tickets and income
from facilitating website access to a travel insurance companies, The operations do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds to be a reportable segment for any of
the vears presented in thase financia! statements.

Adjustments:
1. Finance cost, other income and depreciation and amortization are not allocated to individual segments as they are managed at Group level.
2. Current tax and deferred tax assets and liabilities are not allocated to individual segments as they are managed at Group level.

Entity wide disclosures
Revenue of INR 158.74 15 derived from one extermnal customer arising from Air Passage segment for the year ended March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 INR 409,78 from
two external customers) individually accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue,

(This space has been imtentionally lefi blank)
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Notes to Conselidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2621
{Amount in [NR million, ualess otherwise stated)

The summary of the segmental information for the vear ended and as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Hotel

Particulars Air Passage Other services  Total Operations
Packages

Sale of Services 968.46 3 8.89 981.07
Other operating revenue

-Advertisement revenue 84.92 0.33 0.78 86.03
Total Revenue 1,053.38 4.05 9.67 1,067.10
Segment results
Add: Gther income 317.93 - - 317.93
Less- Operating expenses 623.63 2,41 5.72 631.75
Operating profit 747.68 165 395 753.28
Less: Finance cost - - - 35.34
Less: Depreciation and Amortization - - - 6.62
Add: Other income - ~ - 122.53
Profit hefore tax 747.68 1.65 3.95 833.85
Segment assets
Allocable assets 1,212.76 185.52 10,92 1,409.19
Unallocable assets - - - 2.567.64
Total assets 1,252.76 185.52 10.92 3.976.84
Segment liabilities
Allocable liabilities 1,936.37 227.77 1.16 2,165.30
Unallocable liabilities - - - 184.90
Total liabilities 1,936.37 227.77 1.16 2,350.2¢
Additions {0 non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3.85 - - 3.85
Intangible assets 0.87 - - 0.87
The summary of the segmental information for the year ended March 31, 2020 is as follows:
Particulars Air Passage Hotel Other services Total Operations

Packages

Sale of Services 1,171.78 67.34 7.51 1,246.63
Other operating revenue

-Advertisement revenue 156.94 9.02 1.01 166.97
Total Revenne 1,328.72 76.36 8.52 1,413.60
Segment resulis
Add: Other income 206.86 - - 206.86
Less: Operating expenses 1,232.47 70.83 790 1,311.20
Qperating profit 303.11 5.53 0.62 309.26
Less: Finance cost - - - 33.02
Less: Depreciation and Amortization - - - 7.07
Add: Other income - - - 189.65
Profit/ (loss) before tax 303.11 5.53 0.62 458.82
Segment assets
Allocable assets 946.70 98.21 8.56 1,053 47
Unallocable assets - - - 1,845.37
Total assets 246.70 98.21 8.56 2,898.84
Segment liabilities
Allocable liabilitics 1,641 31 109.17 0.61 1,7151.0G
Unallocable liabilities - - - 135.24
Total liabilities 1,641.31 109.17 0.61 1,886.33
Other Segment information
Additions to non-current assels
Property, Plant and Equipment 10.16 - - 10.16
Right-to-use asset 6.64 - - 6.64
Intangible assets 17.37 - - 17.37
Intangibles under development 333 - - 333

—_—
N
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33 Capital Management
For the purpose of Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maximise the sharcholder
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group incfudes within net debt, interest bearing
borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Borrowings [refer note 12] 173.41 67.60
Trade Payables [refer note 13(a)] 256.00 266.39
Other financial liabilities [refer note 13(b)] 1,074.32 71731
Less: cash and cash equivalents [refer note 9] (426.42) (134.14)
Net debts 1,077.31 917.16
Equity share capital [refer note 10] 217.29 217.29
Other equity [refer note 11] 1,406.99 793.21
Total capital 1,624.28 1,010.50
Capital and net deht 2,701.59 1,927.66
Gearing ratio (%) 39.88% 47.58%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets terms
& conditions attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2021 and year
ended March 31, 2020.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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34 Fair value measurements

Set out below, is 2 comparison by class of the carrying amouats and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments, inclnding those with carrying amounts that are

reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair value

Parti As at As at

RENIat March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value threugh
profit or loss account (FYTPL)
lnvestments 10.15 9.99 10,15 9.99
Financial assets at amonrtised cost
Loans 213.13 197.68 213.13 197.68
Trade recgivables 289.03 58162 289.03 581.92
Cash and cash equivalents 426.42 13414 426.42 134.14
Other bank balances 1,858.32 1,177.95 1,858.32 1,177.95
Other financial assets 210.91 354,50 210,91 354 .50
Tatal 3,007 % 2.456,18 3,007.96 245618
Financial Habilities
Borrowings 173.41 67.60 173.41 67.60
Trade payables 255.85 26639 255,85 266,39
Other financial liabilities 1,074,32 717.31 1,074.32 717.31
Total 1,503.58 1,051.30 1,503.58 1,051.30

Management has assessed that loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade payables and borrowings approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair values of the mutual funds are based on price-quotations at the reporting date.

Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors,
individual creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed project.

Discount rate used in determining fair value

The interest rate used to discount estimated future cash flows, where applicable, are based on the incremental borrowin g rate of borrower which in case of financial
lizbilities is average market cost of borrowings of the Group and in case of financial asset is the average market rate of similar credit rated instrument. The Group
maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available.

The fair value of the financial assets and Liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing

parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the Group's advances are determined by using discount rate that reflects the incremental borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting year.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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35 Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosad are cateporised within the fair value hisrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Level 1: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2. This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are cbservable for such items, directly or
indirectly.

Level 3: This level of hierarchy includes items measured using 2 valuation model based on asswmnptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current markat transactions
in the same instruments nor based on available market data.
Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments is discounted cash flow analysis.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hicrarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities:

Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2021:

Fair value ement using
Particulars Total Quaoted prices in active Slgmﬁca-nt observable Sigml‘icaltt
markets inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Levet 2) (Level 3)
Financial agsets measured at fair value
Investients at fair value through profit or loss
- Mutual funds 10.15 19.15 -
10.15 10,15 -
There are no transfer between levels during the year ended March 31, 2021,
Fair value measurement bierarchy for assets ag at March 31, 2020;
T Fair value ement using
Particulars Total Quoted prices in active | Significant observable Slgmﬁcar.lt
markets inputs unohservable inputs
(Level 1) ALevel 2) 1 (Level 3)
Financial asgeds measured at fair value
Trvestments at fair value through profit or loss
= Mutual funds 9.99 9.99 - -
9.99 9.9¢ - -

There are no transfer between levels during the year ended March 31, 2020.

(Tiis space has been sientionally fefi blank)
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36 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

@)

(i)

(b}

The Group's activities are exposed to variety of financial risk; credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The Group's senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Group’s senior management ensures that the Group’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that
financial Tisks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. The Group reviews and agrees on policies for managing
cach of these risks which are summarized below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial less. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables), including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and ather
financial instruments.

Trade receivables and coniract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets are typically unsecured. Credit risk is managed by the Group through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously
monitoring the creditworthiness of customers ta which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows:

Trade Receivables

Particulars Not Due 0 to 60 days 60 to 120 davs 120 to 180 days More than 180 days Total
As at March 31, 2021 171.48 108,04 22.50 10.65 56.98 369.65
As at March 31, 2020 414.99 71.2G 83.76 51.09 31.85 652.89
The ageing of trade receivables does not include expected credit loss,
Expected credit loss for trade receivables using simplified approach

Asat As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Gross carrying amount 369.65 652.8%
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance provision) (80.62) {70.37)
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of im pairment) 289.03 581.92

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptabie losses. The Group's

objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Group closely monitors its liquidity position and deplays
a tobust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimised cost.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undisconnted payments.

As at March 31, 2020 Carrying amount On Demand Upto 1 year More than 1 year Total

Other financial liabilities 717.31 717.31 - - 717.31
Borrowings 67.60 - 67.60 - 67.60
Trade pavables 266.39 - 266.39 - 266.39
Total 1.051.30 717.31 333.9% - ____1.051.3¢
As at March 31, 2021 Carrying amount On Demand Upto 1 year More than 1 year Total

Other financial habilities 1.074.32 1,074.32 - - 1,074.32
Barrowings 173.41 - 173.41 - 173,41
Trade pai ables 256,00 - 256.00 - 256.00

Total 1.503.73 1,074.32 429.41 - 1,503,73
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk ihat the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk. interest rate risk, urrency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include trade
payables in foreign currency.

(a) Foreign currency risk:
The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the statement of profit ot loss, where any transaction references more than one currency
or where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Group. The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign
currencies and thus it is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations. The Group has a treasury team which evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by
assessing its exposure to exchange rate risks and advises the management of any material adverse effect on the Group.
Particuolar of unhedged foreign exposure payables as at the reporting date :
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
e -
pretgn Rupee equivalent Foreign Rupee equivalent
Currency currency Amount . currency Amount o
A (INR million) o (INR million)
{in millign) {in million)
USsD 4.0 6.93 0.09 6.58
EUR 0.00 0.24 0.60 0.24
THB 0.09 0.22 0.09 0.22
Foreign currency sensitivity on unhedged exposure
5% increase / deerease in foreign exchange rates will have the following impaet on profit before tax:
Impact on profit before tax
As at Ag at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Increase by 5% in forex rate 037 1.13
Decrease by 5% in forex rate {0.37) (1.13)
37 Disclosure required under section 186(4) of the companies Act 2013

Included in loans and advance are certain intercorporate deposits the particulars of which are disclosed below as required by Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013,

. Secured / Faor the year ended For the year ended

Name of party Rate of interest Due date unsecured Purpose of Loan March 31, 2021 Marchgl, 2070
Easy Production Private Limited On Demand Unsecured Maovie production . 335.50
Total - 335.50

Movement in loans are as follows:
As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Opening balance 114.51 351.35
Add: Loans given during the year - 335.50
Less: Received back during the year 114.51 57234
Net amount appearing in Loans (Note 6) - 114.51

38 The Holding Company is yet to file Annual Performance Report to Authorised Dealer in respect of all thiee subsidiaries for the financial year 2019-20,
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39 Business combinations
Acquisitions during the year ended March 31, 2020
a)  M/s Singapore Arrival Pte. Limited
On 15 May 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of M/s Singapore Arrival Pre. Limited, 2 non-listed Company based in Singapore. Principal activity
of the acquiree are those of travel agent services. Consideration of acquisition has been discharged in cash, The Group acquired M/s Singapore Arrival Pte. Limited

because it increases the presence of the Group outside India with a further chance to increase in potential growth,

Assets acquired and labilities assumed
The fair values of the identifiable assets and linbilities of M/s Singapare Arrival Pte. Limited as at the date of acquigitian were:

Fair value recognised on

acquigition

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents G4.70
Trade receivables 4.59
Other current assets 587

11,16
Liahilities
Trade payables 0.52

0.52

Total identifiable net assets at fair value 10.64
Non-contrelling fnterests measured at fair value -
Bargain purchase (Note 11) (2.97)
Purchase consideration transferred 7.67

The gross amount and fair value of the trade recivables amounts to INR 4,59, None of the trade teceivables is credit impaired and it is expected that the full
contractual atmounts can be collected.

The Company has paid purchase consideration fully in cash.
From the date of acquisition till March 31, 2020, M/s Singapore Arrival Pte. Limited has contributed INR 1.03 of revenue and INR 8.43 of loss to the profit before
tax of the Group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the vear, revenue would have been decreased by INR 2.38 and the profit before tax for the
Group would have been decressed by INR 10.90.

by M/s BEagemyirip Middleast BMCC
Trade receivables include unbilled receivables of INR 114.30 {March 31, 2020 : INR 342.62) and represents the grass amount of air ticket and hotel packages and

receivabe of other ravel services to be collected from customers.

Assets acquired and liabilities nssumed
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of M/s Easemytrip Middlcast DMCC as at the date of acquisition were:

Fair value recognised on

acquisition

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6.51
Trade receivables 539
Other financial assets 0.96

- 13.36
Liabilities
Trade payables 13.95
Contract Hability 14.20

28.16

Total identifiable net assets at fair value (14.80)
Non-controlling interests measnred at fair value -
Goodwill (Note 4) - 15.96
Purchase ideration t ferred 1.16

The gross amount and fair value of the trade receivables amounts to INR 5.89. None of the trade receivables is credit impaired and it is expected that the full
contractual amounts can be collected.

From the date of acquisition till March 31, 2020, M/s Easemytrip Middleast DMCC has contributed INR. 2.72 of revenue and INR 5.35 of loss to the profit before tax
of the Group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, revenue would have been decreased by INR 0.94 and the profit before tax for the
Group would have been decreased by INR 3.83,

‘The Holding Company has paid purchase consideration fully in cash,
Impairment testing of geodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations have indefinite life. The Company performed its impairment test for the year ended March 31, 2021. The
Company considers the relationship between its recoverable amount and its cartying value, among other factors, when reviewing for indicators of umpairment.

" The rcu;ir{ahle amount of the goodwill is determined based on business forecast prepared by the managerment for the next year, The key assumptions used arg
expeticdanis of airling tickets and hotel packages.

\ -\
Bused o the dnalysis, ne impairment was identified as at March 31, 2021 {March 31, 2020: Nil). Any reasonable possible chanpes to key assumptions do 1
the camyirgviilue to exceed its recoverable amount. None of the goodwill recognised is expected fo be deductible for income tax purposes.
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40
(a) Statement conlaining specilic disclosure of the entities which are inclnded in consolidated financial stat March 31, 202§
Net Asseis i.e, toial assets minus Share in profit and loss Shaze in other comprehensive Share in total comprehensive income
total liabilities income
, .| Percentage As % of Amount As % of Amount Az % of Amount | As % of Consolidated | Amount
Name of the entty in the group RelationshiD | ¢ oiding | Consoligated Consalidated Consolidated Other Total Comprehensive
Net Assels Profit & Lass Comprehensive Income Incame
Easy Trip Planners Limited Parent 10L.67% 1.653.82 102.11% 62298 91.31%, 368 102.04% 62666
Easemynp Middleesst DMCC Subsidiary 10026 (1.46%) (23.81) ©.53%) {3.26) 16.43% 0.66 (0.42%) (2.60)
Singapore Arrivals Pte Limited Subsidiary 100 (0.09%) (1.52) (0.59%) {3.60) 1.56% 0.06 {0.58%) {3.59)
Easemytrip UK Limited Subsidiary 100% {0.38%) (6.19); (0.62%) (3.78) (8.56%) {0.34) {t-67%) {4.13)!
Total 99.73% 1,622,30 100.37% 61234 100.74% 4.06 100.37% 616.39
Consolidation adjustments/eliminations 0.27% 134 {0.37%), (224 (0.7-49%) £0.03)] 0.37%) (2.27)
Total 100.00% | 1,626.64 1000 §10.10 [ 100.00% 4,03 1.00% 614.13
{b} Stat ing specific digel e of the eatitles which are included in Ridated fil ial stats March 31, 2020;
Net Assets Le. total assets minus Share in profit and loss Share in other comprehensive Share in total ¢omprehensive income
. . Percentage As % of Amount A3 % of Amount As %o of Amount | As% of Consolidated | Amount
Name o the entity in the gronp Relationship of Halding | Conselidated Consolidated Consobidated Other Total Comprehensive
Net Assetz Profit & Loss Comprehensive I Incorne
Easy Trip Planners Limiled 10F.45% 102716 105.05% 346,98 345.16% 135 105.38% 347.97
Eagemyirip Middleeast DMCC K% {2.09%) 21.21) (1.62%) (5.35) (179.06%), (0.70), (1.83%) {6.04)
Singapore Aurivals Ple Limiled v 100% .20% 202 {2.56%) (8.43) 92 45% 036 {2.44%) (8.07)
Easemyirip UK Limited Subsidiary 100% (0.21%) {210} {0.63%) (2.07) (9.03%) (0.04) {0.64%)/ 2.12)
Taotal 99 44% 1,005.87 100.24% 330,63 24861% 097 0. 46% 33175
Consolidation adj felimi 0.66% .64 (0.24%) {030} (148.61%) (0.58) (0.46%) [1.53)
Totat 100.00% | 1,612.51 100.00% 319.83 | 10.00% 039 100.00% 330.22‘
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41 Sections 92-92F of Income Tax Act, 1961 prescribe Transfer Pricing regulations for computing the taxable income and expenditure from 'international
transactions' between 'associated enterprises' on an ‘arm's length' basis. These regulations, inter alia, also requite the maintenance of prescribed
documents and information including furnishing a report from an Accountant within the due date of filing the return of income. The Group has
undertaken necessary steps to comply with the Transfer Pricing regulations. The Management is of the opinion that the international transactions are at
arm’s length, and hence the aforesaid legislation will nat have any impact on the financial staterents, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that
of provision for taxation.

42 COVID-19 Pandemic

The cutbreak of Coranavirus (COVID-19) pandemic including second wave has resulted in econemic slowdown. Various restrictions on travel have
been imposed across the globe which have led to huge amount of cancellations and limited new air travel, hotel packages, bus and train bookings. The
Group has undertaken certain cost reduction initiatives, including implementing salary reductions and work from heme policies, deferring non-critical
capital expenditures and renegotiating the supplier payments and contracts, The Group expects t© continue to adapt these policies and cost reduction
initiatives as the situation evolves.

In preparation of these consolidated financial statements, the group has considered the possible effects that may resnit from COVID-19 on the carrying
amount of its assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global conditions because of COVID-19, the
Company, as on date on approval of these consolidated financial statements has taken into account both the current situation and the likely future
developments and has considered internal and extemnal scurces of information to arrive at its assessment. The Group has performed sensitivity analysis
on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements.

43 The Code on Secial Security, 2020 {*Code’) relating to employee benefits during empleyment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent
in September 2020, The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been
notified and the final rules / interpretation have not yet been issued. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will

record any related impact in the year the Code becomes effective. e
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